Long Tom Watershed Council Board of Directors Meeting Thursday, October 9, 2014 Stellaria Building, 150 Shelton McMurphey Blvd Eugene, OR 97401

<u>Present</u>: Alan Dickman, Beth Krisko, Charles Ruff, Deborah Saunders Evans, David Turner, Therese Walch (6)

<u>Absent</u>: Mike Brinkley, Steve Cole, Cary Hart, Steve Horning, Sue Kacskos, Jim Pendergrass, David Ponder, John Reerslev (8)

Staff: Dana Dedrick, Rob Hoshaw, Sarah Whitney

Meeting called to order at 5:56 p.m. by Deborah Saunders Evans, Chair

Business

A. Approve September 2014 Board of Directors Minutes – Secretary Walch No comments or corrections given.

MOTION TO APPROVE September 2014 Board of Directors Meeting Minutes by A. Dickman, seconded by C. Ruff. Approved unanimously.

B. Approve August Treasurer's Reports – (tabled)

The board decided to make a motion to table reviewing and approving the Treasurer's reports until Treasurer Brinkley and Jim Pendergrass are present. Dana notes that Mike has looked them over and approved them.

MOTION TO TABLE review and approval of August 2014 Treasurer's Reports by C. Ruff, seconded by A. Dickman. Approved unanimously.

C. Committee Reports

Tech Team met on September 25 to discuss and provide guidance on grant applications. Jed is pursuing a technical assistance grant for outreach to landowners in the lower Long Tom River. Katie held a second meeting of with a group of technical advisors to discuss restoration planning and objectives for the Coyote Creek South property owned by ODFW.

Nominating Committee – Lindsay Reaves has committed to a 3-year term, and David Ponder will renew for a 1-year term. Dana sent an interest letter to Dolly Woolley, who consulted us on fundraising a couple years ago. Alyssa Lawless of Mountain Rose Herbs appreciated the offer but can't commit right now. We

received a letter of interest from Steve Norris at the City of Eugene. Since we already have Therese as a City of Eugene representative, we're thinking of ways we might involve Steve in the Urban Waters Program.

Dana passed out a board rotation matrix showing the history of members. There was discussion about whether the board was comfortable having only 12 members for now, as three members are rotating off, and we're only adding one new member. Several board members voiced that they would like to build back up to a 14-member board when possible, but recognized that recruitment requires takes a great deal of time and energy. There was general agreement that a 12-person board was adequate short-term.

The primary stakeholder/expertise areas we're looking to fill are business (particularly urban/Amazon Creek area), small agriculture, rural landowners, and fundraising/capacity-building.

Dana invited the board to let her know if they would suggest someone for potential board service. Suggestions: Michael Phinney, rural landowner and owner of Full City Coffee, Julie Tilt of Hummingbird Wholesale, and Tom Lively or Megas MacDonald of Organically Grown.

D. New Policies & Procedures Document – Rob

Rob introduced a draft Policies and Procedures document for review and approval by the board. The purpose of the document is to satisfy Oregon Watershed Enhancement Board capacity funding eligibility requirements. The document addresses eligibility criteria that are not specifically referenced already in one of the Council's existing board-approved policies. Each board policy is meant to stand alone, and the Policies and Procedures document references each of those policies.

The board provided feedback and corrections to finalize the document.

Motion to approve LTWC Policies & Procedures document as amended by C. Ruff, seconded by B. Krisko. Approved unanimously.

There was further discussion as to whether board sub-committees have the authority to approve updates to policies. As an example, the Council previously discussed whether the Operations Committee has the authority to revise the existing herbicide use policy. The key point is that a sub-committee of the board can recommend new policy or updates to an existing policy, but any new policy or policy update goes to the full board for approval. The full board would have the opportunity to review the proposed policy or policy update and vote to approve.

The final draft of the Herbicide Use Policy will be put in the November board meeting packet, and will be voted on for approval.

Further discussion included thoughts on printed board member notebooks. Many board members prefer having an individual printed notebook. It was also recommended that all policies have the same font type and size, and to consider putting all the policies into one document. This would be a nice-to-have, and the board recognizes that staff are maxed out and this is not a high priority.

E. Paperwork Moment

Secretary Walch collected board member volunteer hours forms used as in-kind match.

Program Topics

F. Annual Meeting & Celebration – Rob

Rob went through the Annual Meeting agenda, including how the event would flow, and the roles of board members at the event. He also provided an update on sponsorships and current registration numbers.

There was discussion about how to explain the changes to the boundary and bylaws at the Annual Meeting. Dana is developing talking points. A full copy of the bylaws will be available at the Annual Meeting.

G. **Urban Restoration Program Slideshow** – Sarah

The board learning opportunity was a presentation by Urban Restoration and Stormwater Specialist Sarah Whitney, who spent some time going over the activities and projects of the Urban Waters Program.

H. Lower Long Tom River – Dana

Dana explained the context behind the Army Corps of Engineers plans for increasing the capacity of the lower Long Tom River, and the role LTWC is trying to play in guiding the process in a way that meets goals for habitat and native fish. Key challenges:

- The lower Long Tom River channel is hitting capacity at some locations, and the Army Corps' current plan is to remove vegetation and dredge to increase capacity.
- The Corps' timeframe is 1-3 years, so time is short to act.
- Dredging is technically legal because the Monroe drop structure and fish ladder prevent Chinook, a listed species, from moving upstream. If Chinook were present, the Corps wouldn't be able to dredge.
- The fish ladder and dam is privately owned, and not by the Corps; it
 would require another entity, such as the City of Monroe to purchase and
 maintain the structures.

This is a sensitive issue for area farmers.

Dick Evans, who privately funds our Cutthroat Trout Migration Study, met with Dana and Jed and is willing to pay for a graduate student in humanitarian engineering from OSU to brainstorm possible options. Evans would also donate to the Council to give us the capacity to problem solve. LTWC is applying for an OWEB technical assistance grant that would give us money for outreach to landowners, and we'd be able to use Evans' contribution as match.

Action Item: Dana asks the board to let her know of any contacts they have and any connections to people at the City of Monroe that we might be able to reach out to.

Reports & Announcements

I. Staff Reports
See background.

J. Liaison Reports None given.

K. Action Items Report

- The final draft of the Herbicide Use Policy will be put in the November board meeting packet, and will be voted on for approval.
- Board is asked to find contacts in Monroe in the context of the Monroe dam and the discussion with the Army Corps.

Meeting adjourned at 7:42 p.m. by Chair Deborah Saunders Evans